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Mrs. Arthur W. Evans, 43, declined comment because she bias a 

legal suit pending against Sirhan. '
Paul Schrade, 44, and Irwin Stroll, 17, were not available 

for comment.

• * * * ■ .

THURSDAY, APRIL 24 -- Costs of Sirhan’s arrest, investigation, 
'security, trial and conviction "have soared to nearly $1 milioon," a 

Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Exeminer) reported today. , -

. Noted the article: . .
"By the time the Supeeior Court jury arrived at its death 

verdict to end the penalty phase of the trial yesterday, more than 
$900,000 had been spent by the city and county of Los Angeles and We 

city of Pasadena since Sirhan’s arrest last June 5.

"Costs continued to mount today as Sirhan’s lawyers prepared 
to appeal the fisst-eegeee murder conviction and the death penalty 

verdict." ‘
The same newspaper,, in a story by Myrna Oliver, staff writer, 

commented that Sirhan neaali- and drawn" bias not seen the sun for 10 

months and will soon be "on his way to the Caaifornia Medical Faaclity 
at Vacaavile or to death row at San Qumtin. -

"Even if the ultimate sentence is death, Sirhan may ssill spend 

but. a.short time’ in Snn Quontin where he would be scheduled to die in 

the state’s apple-green gas chamber. ‘
"A bill now pending in the CaCifoiiia State Legislature would 

aiobw Sirhan to await his death i.n a special three-romm suite already

mom — • .
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constructed for him at Vacaville, ; ■
. ’’Philip D/ Guthrie, spokesman for'the State Department of
Corrections, indCcaedthe department hopes the Legislature grants per­

mission to house Sirhan at Vacaville wih.le he awaCts the death penalty. 
- ’“We think we could do a better job (of protecting Sirhan) if
he goes to Vaccaille,’ he said.

■ ’’Special protectoon i.s needed for Sirhan because authorities

say it is dangerous for him to be mixed with hardened prisoners who 

have violent feelings about the assassinatoon of the New York senator.
' ’Guthrie, who said many prisoners — including inoormers,

homosexuals and former police offccers — remain in protective custody 

at dl times, added in an understatement:

. •” The prison poplULctOon its probably more indeed toward 
violnnce than the general potation.1 ■ .

’’Be said the 'redly unprecedented notoriety’ of Sir-han's 

case had caused the state to seek special protectoon for him.”

more «=»=
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FRIDAY, APRIL 25 — The request of* Grant B. Cooper, one of 
three attorneys representing Sirhan B. Sirhan, the convicted slayer .
of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy, to change the date when arguments on a Series 

of defense motions and formal sentencing will take place was granted by 

Speeior Judge Herbert V. Walker.

■ Dep. Dist. Atty, David N. Fitts, representngg the prosecution,
did not oppose the request for a change. . •

. The new date is May 21, inseead of May 14, as originally 

requested by Cooper, after the jury returned a death penalty verdict 
last week.

Today’s court session was hel.d in a maeeshft courtooom on 

• the Uth-floor of the Hall of Justice — the scene of eaalier pre-trial 

maaters — and took five minutes. ■

Reported a Los Angeles newspaper (Times):

“Sirhan was simiing much of the time. He grimed at the 40
spectators, about evenly divided -between newsmen and security officers, 

and acknowledged his brother, Munr, the only member of his family present, 
by ippsppeakng to him." ’

Cooper told newsmen that Sirhan "feels pretty good" and that he 

is hopeful the judge -will grant him a new trial or reduce his penalty 
to:life in prison.

• Cooper also related that Sirhan “is still holding up Ikke a 

man" and said Sirhan objected to Dep. Dist. Atty. John E. Howaad’s penaaty

more —
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argument in which the prosecutor said hie showed no remorse over his act.

, The attorney added that Sirhan told him, he "broke down and 

cried like a baby when hie heard Kennedy had died.11

Another Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Exsminer) quoted Cooper 

as stating he and Russsei E. Parsons, another attorney, told Sirhan, • 

"This is a fine time to be tellirg us that."

Meannhhle, another Los Angeles newspaper (Times) published 

the follownng ecHtorial on the case: • '

' "The jury that convicted Sirhan Sirhan of the willful and pre- 

meddtated muuder of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy has now determined that hie 

should be executed for this crime.
."This is not, to be sure, the final word on the case. The law 

provides for an extensive appeals process, and at some point higher 
authooity may commute Sirhan’s sentence to something other than death in 

the gas chamber. . •

"The long, costly and thorough trial which has just ended can 

properly be regarded as justice exercised as it should be.

■ ’ ’’Within our legal system this i.s not something that should

cause special comment. Yet, in view of how other cases involve notor­
ious poHtical murders have ■ recently been handl.ed — one thinks of the 

Oswald-Ruby circus i.n Dallas and the abortive James Earl Ray trial in 

Memphis -- the conduct of the Sirhan case is a source of some satisfac- 

to6n. • • .
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"Judge Herbert WaUier's decision;early in the proceedings 

not to permit Sirhan to plead guilty and thereby obviate a full trial

■ ■ was sound. The defense and prosecution had agreed on a plea of guilty
,; to frrst-eggeee murder, With an understandngg that a liee sentence wota 

be imposed. . .

■ "But Judge Walker said no. He wanted a fuLl trial, with all

. evidence presented and all witnesses heard.

"Sirhan thus had his day in court, and the requirements of 
justice were served.. No grounds were provided for any charges of c°n— 

spiracy or coverup that would predictably have resulted f the trial

' had been ended abruptly Sirhan’s rights were fully and scrupulously

heeded.

i . . "Of equal importance, so were the .rights of the People.

j ' "The‘jury's findingr of first-eggeee murder was ^s^ on over-
1 whelming evidence of pirmerdtation, and its imposstion of the death

. penalty was Ln keeping wiih the lew. In Califsinia, the alterative
, pmatty, Ifee impriooiment, really is not that at all.

1 . Parole is possible within as few as srvrn years. Sirhan is
, not the sort of man most persons would want free in society again.
' "During the trial questions were raised, and remain, atout
j Sirhan's mental state. The contradictory testimony of expert psychia- 
, tric witnesses did little to resolve these questions. Wat did emerge

‘ clearly is that Sirhan is a wretched and ultimately pathetic little man, 
- who would have remained deservedly obscure except for the tragedy he 

caused.. That tragedy cannot be erased. ■ ■

: ' "One can only pray that others like it can be prevented."

JU!.

।



SSJRWSE
Office of the District Attorney 

■ 600 Hall of Justice
Los. Angeles,’ California 90012

• RW FURTHER UFOORMATION 
Call: Jerry Littman 
News Secretary 
626-3888, Ext. 82396
RELEASE; Wed., May 7, 1969 

After 10 a.t.

WEEKLY-SUMMARY #48
Re: The assassination of 
Senator Robert F. Kennedy

Note to editors: Because of the widespread interest in 
' the assassination of Senator Robert F. Kennedy in Los Angeles

on Wednesday, June 5, 1968, and proceedings in court, the 
Office of Los Angeles County District Attorney Erelle J.

■ Younger its publishing a weekly summary of the case. This is 
the 48th summary, and others will be for release on subsequent 
Wednesdays. . • •

MONDAY, APRIL 28 — The Caaifornia Federation of Young Democrats 

meeting in Los Angeles have adopted a resolution calling for lHe in 

prison for Sirhan Bishara Sirhan, who has been condemned to death for 

the murder of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy, .

Reported a Los AngRes newspaper (Times) :

"About 200 delegates to the quarterly meeting adopted the 
resolutoon asking the court to commute the sentence." •

Sen. Kennedy was slain by Sirhan on June 5, 1968, after Kennedy 

was successful in CcHfornia’s Democratic Presidential primary electoon.

Sirhan was found guuity of fisst-eegm murder by a jury and 

also condemned to death by the same jury. ,
Arguments for a new trial and formal sentencnng i.s expected 

to take place in the ccurtccom of Supeeior Judge Herbert V. Walker on 

May 21. . • '

"Rumors" of possible prison ieSlliat0on against Sirhan B. Sirhan • 
win disdoosed today by an official of the state’s prison system, accord—
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ing to United Press International. .
• Lawrence E. Wilson, deputy director of the State Department 

of Corrections, told newsmen the hints were "nothing that you could put 
your finger on.”

The prison official spoke with newsmen in Sacramento after 

a State Assembly cornmttee rejected the state’s request to house Sirhan, 
convicted killer of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy, in a special high-security 

call at the Vaccville Medical Facdity.

. Continued title UPI story:

• ’’Sirhan, a Jordanian immigrant, was condemned to the San

Quentin gas chamber last Weednesday in the lsslssinltion of Sen. Kennedy, 

gunned down as hie celebrated victory in Caaifornia’s 1968 primary electOn.

. "Phiilip D. Guthrie, spokesman:! for the Department of Corrections,
told newsmen Sinham would be confined at San Quentin.

"At San Quentin, the state's maximum security prison north of 

San FrlncLSCiJ the state plans to establish what Wilson called a "buffer 
zone" for Sirhan that would place him in the middle cell of three and 

keep the two on either si.de empty. ■ ■
■ "’He will be totally isolated,' Guthrie said. - ' •

"Guthrie noted that the 79 priooners now on death row must 

walk across an open prison ’yard’ — a huge area where inmates get ex­
ercise in full view of other irmates.

"’It is right through the main compound — right through the .

more —
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entire population,’ Wilson said. He said Sirhan would be escorted ’fore 
and aft* in front and to the rear — by security guards and have special 

guards in his cell block. ’’ .

' Meanwhile, a Los Angeles newspaper (Times) said Guthrie in­

dicated that tie department wanted to keep Sirhan at Vacaville because 

the department is "less weH suited at San Quentin to exert the pre­

cautions that hill be necessary.’’
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WEEKLY SUMMARY #49
Re: The assassination, of
Senator Robert F. Kennedy_ _ .

Note to editors: Because of the widespread interest" 
in the assassination of Senator Robert F. Kennedy in 
Los Angeles on Wednesday, June 5, 1968, and proceedings 
in court, the Office of Los Angeil.es County District Attorney 
Evelle J.‘Younger is publishing a weelkly summary of 4the case. 
This is the 49th summary, and others will be for release 
on subsequent Wednesdays.

SUNDAY-, MAY 4 — Because of legal techiicaaitees, the U.S.

SUpreme Coout will overturn Sirhan B. Sirhan's conviction for the murder 
of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy, the Jordanian imimgrant’s chief defense c^n^l 

said in a TV interveew broadcast in Los Angeles today.
According to a story in a Los Angeles newspaper (Herald­

Examiner) yesterday, Attorney Grant B. Cooper said the cow-t was in error 
in ldmtting Sirhan’s notebook in evidence. Among other statmments, it 
contained the sentence, "Kennedy mst die,"

Continued the newspaper account of the TV program:
"Cooper said that without the book the prosecution would have 

bttn una‘ble to establish premeditation for the assassination. The lawyer 
also said he believes the jury was not a representative cr^s-^ction °f 
the people!, as he said was corntttutionally guaranteed.

"According to Cooper, the cast presented by the dtftnse, with 
its parade of expert psychiatric witnesses, was 'too tiplhsticatti, for
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•the jury.
"In comnenting on the case that was the capstone of his dis~ 

tinuished career, Cooper sa±d his maal from the pUlic indicated that 
they did not respect him for his defense for Sirhan. But • he said the 
opinion was just the -oppooite in letters foom other attorneys. - •;

"Eaalier yesterday, Cooper said he expected to take half a 

day in his arguments May 21 for a new trial for Sirhan."

(Meanwhile, in„a speech at Palmdale (Caaifornia) Irte last 

week, ClhLef Dep. Dist. Atty. Lynn D. Compton, who headed the three-man 

prosecution team in the Srh^ case, evented on the case.
(According to a United Press International story in the Holly­

wood a.tlnin-nwsS, Compton said "there is no diMorrnce teehee tile con­

victed assassin of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy and student m.litnts who take 

over campus ■buLldnngs.

(’’’The assassination of a political figure is fiseniially no 

different than the act of occupying a school bulling,,’1 he related.
(Contnued the UPI story: "'There is no diffrfincf between 

people you iff on TV with their distorted faces and hate who feel justifeed 
in rioting or taking over a campus buildnng end Sirhan,' said Commton.’O

Compton added: "Both are examples of using physical force to 

aeerm-Oish pooitical goals. ' ’he only difference is rnf of e-eer of 

vioeenef."

* * *
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WEDNESDAY, MAY 7 - Los Angeles County Dep. Dist. Atty. 
John E. Howsard, one of the prosecutors in the Sirhan case, recently 

addressed the San Gaariel Valley Bat- Associatoon, and admitted that 
the trial "presented some unique tests for the Amirican judicial 

system " according t;o an article in a Los Angeles legal newspaper 

(DaHy Journal)".
Continued the article:
"The’ deputy dLstract attorney said that the.state was 

concerned with seccuity surrounding the defendant because of wha’t hud 

happened an Dallas fillowOng the assassinatoon of President John F. 

Kennedy. He saiLd that the (Los Angel.es County) District Attorney's 

Office as well as the entire system of law was on public trial before 
the world.

"The speaker stated that it was imperative that adequate 

putbicity be given to every Hem in the case, since to conceal anything 
w°uld only raise suspicion.

"Howard said that when he entered the case hie was given 

instructions to make a thorough investigation report to the citieeruy, 

and see that the unpopular alien received a fair trial.

"Sirhan's continued outbursts in court did not make the 
prosecution's job any easier, said Howard. These outbursts only raised 

question marks in the minds of some as to the fainness of the trial.

"Howard commended Judge (Herbert V.) WOker on the job hie 

did in maintaining the lquilrbiUuil of the court during the long weeks 
of the trial. 'He did a m:agifacent job,’ said Howard.

more —
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"Also, said Howard, the investigation discloeed the 
flawless job done by the Loo Angeles Police Department. Howard 

said that police officers went into the Ambassador Hotel and peace­

fully removed the prisoner while protectOng him with their own bodies 

foom possible outside forces. . - *

* * *

"The deputy district attorney told the bar association 

that he was present during much of the initial questioning at Sirhan, 
and can testify that the defendant was inoormed of his icnoSitutiooll 
rights at least nine tines.

“ If ever a man was protected under the law from ^art to 

finish, it was Sirhan, Howard concluded."
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weekly SUMMARY #50
Re: Assassination.of
Senator Robert F. Kennedy

Note to editors: Because of the widespread interest in 
the assassination of Senator Robert F. Kennedy in Los 
Angeles on Wednesday, June 5, 1968, and proceedings in court, 
the Office of Los Angeles County District Attorney Evelle J. 
Younger i.s publishing a weekly summary of 'the case. This is 
the 50th summary, and others wi.ll be for release on subsequent 
Wednesdays. .

SUNDAY, MAY 11 -- According to a Los Angeles newspaper (Times), 

Attorney Melvin Belli met with the family of Sirhan B. Sirhan, the con- 

viceed slayer of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy, yesterday.
The newspaper article, by Noel Greenwood and Linda Mathews, staff 

writers, indicaeed BeUi said '‘he probably will handle the appeal of

Sirhan's convictoon for the assassinatoon of"Sen. Kennedy.

Continued the news story: '

'He said he would meet with Sirhan early this week.

"The announcement set off speculation that BeUi was about to 

take over the defense of Sirhan, senteneed to die in the gas chamber.

'"I think the death penalty is cittPetely ^called for,1 slid 
BeUi, who defended Jack Ruby in his trial for the murder of Lee Harvey 

Oswald, assassin of President John F. Kennedy. Ruby received a death 

sentence but was awwating retrial when he died of cancer in January, 1967.

"Altouugh BeUi said his interest in Sirhan was limHed to writing 
an appeal brief, an associate indicaeed BeHi’s role could develop into 

much more than that.
r‘’There’ no question the family would like him to do that (write 

an appeal brief)’ said Sydney Irmas, a Beveely Hills-attorney associated 
SEARCHED................. INDEXED  .
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‘■’Then, the question is whether he's going to go any further.
And I think nobody but Sirhan can decide that.'

'■Russell E. Parsons, one of Sirhan's three defense lawyers, 
inorrmed of Belli’s comments, said he was in the case "uitil the bitter 
end.

,:’I told hie (Sirhan) when hie hired me that I would go to the 
Supreme Court of the United States if necessary, and he shook hands with 

me and said, 'That’s what I want.’
"Grant B. Cooper, Sirhan’s' chief defense counsel, said he knew 

nothing about BeHi enters the case.
"BUi said Sirhan's mother and two brothers first approached him 

about three weeks ago when he was in Los Angeles for a trial.

’’In a two-hour meeting during a court recess, they asked him to 

enter the case, he said.

"Saturday morning, Sirhan’s wtter and brother, Adel, met with 

BeHi in the lawyer's Los Angeles apartment. Adel tto agreed loo arrange 

for the meeting this week between Sirhan and BeHi.

’’Beni said his main interest was in writnng the appeal shoohi 
the motion for a new trial for Sirhan be denied. That motion, submitted 

last month by Cooper, is scheduled for argument May 2’ before Supeeior 
Judge Herbert V. Walker.

(Meannhhle, the Los Angeles Herald-Examiner carried a United Press 

InternttOontl story quoting Mrs. Mary Sirhan as stating i;I can’t comment 

(about BeHi) btcaust I don’t know that much about it.5;
(The same UPI story reported that "BeUi said Sirhan was ^lentaHy 

unbalanced and added, 'Sirhtt's not going to die.’")

more
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MONDAY, MAY'12 — Sirhan B. Sirhan said today that hie will 
keep Attorneys Grant B. Cooper and Russel Parsons "and none other" to 

fight his conviction and death sentence for the murder of Sen. Robert; F. 

Kennedy.
According to a Los Angeles newspaper (Times), "It was the first 

word from Sirhian himself in response to stories that celebrated San 

Francisco Attorney Melvin Belli would handle Sirhan's appeaa."
In a statement today, released through Cooper, Sirhan said:

"I, Siriain Sirhan, having full coufieence in my present attw- 

neys, Grant B. Cooper and RusseH Parsons, members of the Caaifornia 
State Bar, hereby engage them and none other to handle my appeal to the 
Suprlema Court of the State of Ccaifornia and, if necessary. t° the Supreme 

Court of the United Statle.,t
. Thu statement, contnnued the newspaper, was signed by Sirhan

and witnessed by Baron Sarkus Nahas, an Arab who served as unofficial 

advisor to Sirhan's defense during the 15-week trial, and Slieeiff's 

Lt. Rudolph Berteaux.

As for BeUi, he was quoted Friday in Tucson as saying Sirhan's 

famny had contacted him and, "They want me to do the appeel," reported 

the newspaper.

Related the newspaper:

"Sirhan's brother, Adel, 30, said Monday he and his mother, 

Mary, 59, had met with BeUi once, bu-t that the meeting had been i-n- 

decisive. He said BeUi had not been engaged either to assist or replace 

Sirhan's present attorneys.

more —
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"Asked if the family was dissatisfied with Sirhan's defense, 

in view of his conviction, Adel Sirhan said, 'No, we are not — not in 

any way.1

"He said it was his understandegg that Belli's involvmment 

in the case probably would be in fiiinn a free^ of the court brief. 
Beni himssef was quoted earlier as saying he did not expect to parti­

cipate personally in any further court sessions, but would probably 
restrict his efforts to a writeen‘app^l.

"Beni was not immeveatlly available for comment Monday."

Cost of the Sirhan trial to -tin taxpayers of Los Angeles County 
totals $929,285, said Suppevisor Kenneth Hahn, "in releasing tin final 
audit of the most expensive trial in Los Angeles County history," accord­
ing to an article in a Los Angeles legal newspaper (Daily Journal).

"Any appeals will add to the expels," he said, continueng 
that he hopes "it prevents the need for another Warren C<iImmssion which 

cost $6 million to investigate the death of Penitent K«nee<dr."

County costs through Appil 30, said Hahn, were $570,478; 

Shheiff's Departient, $110,000; Pasadena Police Department, $39,978; 

Los Angeles Police Department, $208,829.

Some of the extraordinary costs inouuded $62,045 to aLter tin 
Haa_l of Justice and Cennral Men’s Jai.1 and $58,397 for witness, jury 

and tr^mscribeng fees, added Hann. .

(Meanwhile, it was charmed at a Civil Service CiImmsioeL hear­

ing that the suspended Los Angeles County Coroner, Dr. Thomas T. Noguchi,

more —
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1#

"danced in his office while waiting for Sen. Kennedy to die from an 

assassin’s bullet last June," according to the Los Angeles Times.

(The newspaper quoted Noguchi as staUng he would he famous

if the senator died.
(Noguchi was the coroner at this tmne of the assassination.

He was fired by the Board of Supervisors March 18, after the cocnty 

chief atdmnnssrative officer fieed a long report critical of Noguchi’s

conduct in office. - .

(At today’s hearing, Godfrey Isaacs, Noguchi’s attorney, said 

his client revered, the senator and "if he c^uK have given part of his 

Iffe for Kennedy to live, he wouK have.)

* * *
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WEEKLY SU1<11<AR<Y #51
Re; Assassination of Senator Robert F. Kennedy

Note to editors: Because of the widespread interest 
in the assassination of Senator Robert F. Kennedy in 
Los Angeles on Wednesday, June 5, 1968, and proceedings 
in court, the Office of Los Angeles County District 
Attorney Erelle J. Younger is publishing a weekly suttary 
of the case. This is the 51st summary, and others -will 
be for release on subsequent Wednesdays.

MONDAY, MAY 19 — Payment of $85,071.08 was demanded today

from organizations which last year backed U.S. Sen. Robert F. tenntey 
for P^sido; i, according to an article in a Los Angel.es newspaper

(Times).
(The senator was shot by Sirhan Bishara Sirhan in tte

Los Angeles Ambassador Hotel on June 5, 1968. He new awwats sentencing 

by Superior Judge Herbert V. Walker. The jury voted tte d^th sentence 

for the defendant.)
The d.e!mlnid for payment was contaneed in a suit fited in.

behalf of the hotel, and directed against tte Natioml Kennedy for 

President CoIm:mttre, Kennedy National Headquarters, Kennedy Campaigni 

Comm•it■t;re and the latter's attorney, Stanley R. Caidin, and Jolins 

Glaze ar, account ant.
Filed Appil 18, the suit was sealed pending tte levying of

an lttacternt by the county marsh's offcce. Tte mrsinQ's r^ort 

showed that an account standing i.n the name of tte Kennedy Campaign
56-156-21-21
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Coimmttee at the U.S. National Bank had been attached.

But Caidin said only a "nominal amount" was in the account.

The suit said the bill was incurred for hotel space, goods 

and services under an agreement made in June, 1968.
* * *

TUESDAY, MAY 20 — The Los Angeles County Board of Supeevisors 
today voiced support of federal legislatoon designed to reimburse state 

and l^al governments for expenses resuLtng from the prosecution of 
individuals accused of assassinating or attempting Ito assassinate federal 

office holders.

Noted an article in a Los Angeles legal newspaper (Daily 

Journal):

"The resolution deliver by Supervisor Kenneth Hahn called 

for the county to support a bill now before the Uniedd States Senate, 

Which was authored by Montana Sernator Lee Meecalf.

i:If passed, the legislatonn would provide for the reimburse­
ment of any prosecution expense resulting foom the attempted assassi­
nating or assassination of the President, cabinet member, Senator and 

member of the House of Retresennativts.
"The resolution-.by Supervisor Hahn made reference to the 

rectntlyiOnncUdted trial of Sirhan Sirhan, the convicted assassinr of 
Senate Robert F. Kennedy.

"Hahn said that the trial of Sirhan cost the taxpayers of 

Los Angel.es County $929,285, and was the most costly in the history 

of the county.

more —
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"The resolution also requested, that the expense of the 
Sirhan trial be reimbursed by the federal government. Copies of tiie 

resolution are being sent to President Nixon and to all tte members 

of Congress."
* * * .

WEDNESDAY, MAY 21 -- Appearing in Supeeior Coourt today at 
the trial of Sirhan B. Sirhan, Los Angeles County Dist. Atty. Erel^ 

J. Younger issued the filiowing statement regarding a hand-witeen 
letter hie received from Sen. Edward M. Kennedy, brother of Sen. Robert 
F. Kennedy, who was slain by Sirhan.

The text of the statement:
"Some tmae ago, when discussions concerning the eoisSiili-ty 

of a plea were being conducted, I inquired of an attorney representing 
Senator Edward Kennedy whether or not the Senator or the Kennedy fam.ly 

had any comments or recommendations relative to tie penalty in. this 

case.

"I was told at that tmae that the Senator did not have any 
recommendations

"Last week, this same attonney phoned from New York and 

asked me whether or not, in my opinion, it would be proper for the 
Senator to now express an opinion concerning penalty.

"I indicated that, in my opinion, the question of gu.lt 

having been decided, it would be proper for a member of the faMly of 

the victim to express an opinion, provided it was dono openly in the 

form of a letter to the probation office or to the judge.

more —
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»I further indicated, however, that the judge might consider 
such an opinion ireetevtat to the present proceedings, but that in 
any event, the letter would be in the fiee for consideratoon at any 

clemency hearing that might occur in the future.
fsI indicated that if the Semtor wished to write a letter 

expressing his opinion, I would present it to your Honor in open court. 
I have here a hand-written letter, which was delivered to me on May 19, 

1969, and I offer it to your Honor for whatever consideratoon you deem 

proper.’’
Copies of the Senator’s letter ware then handed to Judge 

Herbert V. Walker and Grant B. Cooper, one of the defense attorneys, 
but it was not read in open court.

Later, however, Younger reeeased the text of the Kennedy 

letter, which i.s asi-follows:

”Some weeks ago you inquired whether the Kennedy family wished 

to express any views on the possible per^ties available to the comt 

under the law in the trial involving the death of my brother.

"The issue; th^ was the position to be taken by the pro­
sedition on the offer of a plea of gulty an.d that involved the question 
whether there would be any tri.al at all. We felt that any answe:r to 
your inquiry at that tiw would accordingly be inappropriate.

"At the time of the hearing on the sentence a similar inquiry 
was made by defense counsel. The matter was then before the jury and 

again any response seemed inappropriate.

I 
i

more —
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”I now understand that the trial judge will be called upon 

to exercise his discretoon concerning the penalty. Since this is now 

a question of clemency and the trial proceedings have been concluded, 

I feel I can approximately convey to you, for whatever consideratoon 
you believe t;o be proper, how we feel.

"My brother was a man of love and sentiment and compassion. 

He would not have wanted his death to be a cause for the taking of 

another life.

"You may recall his pleas when he learned of the death of 

IMatin Luther King;. He said that 'what we need in the United States 
is not division; what we need in the United States is not hatred;
what we need i.n the United States i.s not vioennce or lawlessness, but 
love and wisdom and compassion towards one another.'

"Moreover he was a young man totally committed too Ifee and 

livOng. He stood against injustcce, poverty and discriiinatOon for 

these evils lessened life..

"He grew to despise war for war denies the sacredness of 

Ifee. And hie had a special affection for children for they held the
promise of Ifee.

"We all realize that many other consideratinns fall within 
your respoonsbility and that of the comt. But if the kiLnd of man 

my brother was is pertinent we beieeve it should be weighed in the 
ba:iance on t;he side of compassion, mercy and God’s gift of Ifee itself."

Sirhan was formally sentenced today t;o death in the San Queetin 

gas chamber, despite the plea by Sen. Edward Kennedy that the liee of

more —
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his brother’s assassin be spared

Reported a Los Angeles newspaper (Times):

"Supeeior Judge Herbert V. Walker, brushing aside both the
dramatic letter and an impassioned entreaty'- by defense attorney Grant

B. Cooper, read solemnly from a previously prepared summary of the case.

11 ’This is the tmie for judgment and sentience... It is the
judgment and sentence of this court that for the crime of murder in 

the frsst-eiegree...you should suffer the penalty of death within the 
walls of San Quueitin in the manner prescribed by law. 1

"He ordered the diminutive assassin taken to San Quunnin’s 
Death Row within 10 days.

"Sirhn, standing with his hands on his hips and starnng 

without visile onoti^ as the judge sternly pronouniced sentence, turned 

and smiled at defense investigator Michael McCowan, ’Wei, now the real 
battle begins.’ • '

"Mrs. Mary Sirhan, seated in the second row of the smaH

cturtttom, cried softly and dabbed at her eyes as she waited for court 

to adjourn, signaling the moment when she could visit her condemned 

son in his 13th fooor cell.

"She also had written to Judge Weaker, citing Biblical ref­
erences in her plea for mercy for Sirhan. Her letter, delivered to the 
69-year old jurist Wednesday morning, was not mentioned in open court.11

Before the formal sentencing today, Cooper cited 13 grounds

for his motion for a new trial for Sirhan, arguing at length on two 

points.

more
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Reported the newspaper:

"He devoted his major effort to a contention that the defense 

had been msHed by the prosecution last February, when the possiiility 

of a change of pleas was being discussed.

"At that time, Cooper said, both defense and prosecution 
agreed -that Sirhan could plead guilty to fisst-eegree murder with an 

understanding -that he would, be sentenced to life imprsooiment.

"But Judge .Walker rejected this deal, insisting that if Sirhani 
did change his plea, the question of penalty must still be left up to 
the jury.

"Cooper said the prosecution then offered, if Sirhan would 
plead guilty, to recommend that the jury hand down a liee sentence.

"Asked what the prosecution would do if Sirhan decided against 
the plea change and went ahead with the trial, Cooper said, the prosecu- 

tsoi s-tated it would. make no recommendation, either for a death penalty 
or a l:te sentence.

"At that tmie. Cooper said, Younger told the defense that the 
production was 'in a positoon where we can’t csnscieitiousyy urge the 
death pennaty. ’

”kt was on ihis understaindigg, Cooper said, that the defense 

fnally advised Sirhan to go ahead with the trial and not risk a jury 
tecision for death despite the prosecution's reported wilingnness not 

to press for it.

”I- was here, Cooper said, that they were misled because the 
prosecution 'didn't keep its word' when Dep. Diet. Atty. John E. Howard

more —
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made his final argument to the jury in the penalty phase of the trial, 

after Sirhan had already been convicted of frsst-eerree murder.
"Alhhough Howard never speecfically mentioned the death 

penalty, he did urge the jury to return ’the only proper penalty for 

pooitical assassinatoon in the United States of Amerca.'
"Cooper1, in addition to claiming the defense was misled, also 

charged Judge Waaker with judicial error in not accepting the plea 
change.

“He further charged the jurist with error in his refusal to 
bar foom evidence the controversial notebooks in which Sirhan wrote of 

his intention iso kill Kennedy.

"Alhhogh Sirhan’s writings later became a major bulwark of 

his defense of diminished mental capacity, Cooper contended that the 

notebooks were neggaUy seized to begin with.

"Cooper’s final plea for a reduction of Sirhan’s death penalty 
hinged principally on Yhon;er»s’wiltg!trs^ss to accept a lie sentence 

brcaosr of psycMatric reports iniicatneg that Sirhan was meenaLly ill.

"Cooper's motion was supported by a freeni--if-■the-ciurt brief 
offered by attoneeys A. L. Mirin and Fred Olkrand of the American Civil 
Libertees Union.1!

Another Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Ibaminer) offered these 

comments:

"’Had the jury known at the tmie they were considering the 
question of Ife and death the attiOidr of the Kennedy family, ’ Cooper 

said, ’I feel their verdict would have been entirely different.’

more —
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"Cooper also asked the judge to reduce the sentence on the 
basis that Sirhan is mentally ill and that hie 'has never been in diffi­

culty with the law before and has a commPetely clean record.’

"The veteran attorney, who never before had a client covicted 
of frsstdeegree murder or sentenced to death,, also mad editorials from 

news media, requesting a reduction of the sentence of life imprionmient.

"Mrs. Irma Maatinez, one of the jurors who convicted and 

doomed Sirhan, and Hrs. Eleanor Landgreen, an alternate who also sat 
through the 16 weeks of trstomoty, returned as courtmom spectators to 
hear Judge Waaker’s upholding of the verdict,, They appeared unmoved 

by Sen. Kennedy’s plea for Sirhan’s Ifee.

"In issuing the sentence, Judge Walker also denied Cooper's 
13-point motion for a new trial.

'”It is disappoonning,’ Cooper said after the judge's decision, 
'but that iLs that.’

"Sirhan will have an automatic appeal of the death sentence 

before the Califor^a Supreme Court. Cooper said, however, he planed 

to me a separate appeal either Monday or Tuesday.

"Crrprr and defense attorney Russsll E. Parsons have vowed 

to carry Sirhan's case as far as the United States Supreme Conut.

^rhaVs third counsel, New York attorney Em.le zoILi Berman, bowed out 
of the clsr at the end of presrttatr()n of testimony and closing argu­
ments .

* * *
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THURSDAY, MAY 22 — A Los Aigeles newspaper (Herald-Examiner) 

today reported "Secrecy surrounds the imminent transfer of Sirhan, 
doomed murderer of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy, from Los Aigeles t;o San 

Quenntn’s Death Row.

"Judge Herbert V. Walker yesterday ordered Sirhan sent to 
the prison ’within 10 days5 after he upheld a jury's Appil 23 verdict 

and formally sentenced Sirhan to death..

"Sh^ili’s Department authooities, continunng their maximum 
protectoon of Sirhan that with his trial has cost the county almost 

$1 mlloon, refused to say when or how Sirhan will be taken to the 
prison north of San Francisco.” '

Meeanwhile, the same newspaper reported today that Ira Gold­

stein, 20, who was shot during tte June 5 sl.ayj.ng of the senator, has 

fiied a $500,000 damage suit against Sirhan and the Ambassador Hotel 
for injuries he received.

Continued the newspaper':

’’Goldstein’s sit, fieed scant hour's after Sirhan’s sentencing, 
is the third civil action fmed since the shooting.

"Goldstein aieeges he was assaulted and beaten as well as shot 

during the assassination fracas. He named the hotel co-defendant on 

grounds its management was negligent in failfng to provide for the safety 
of patrons."

mom —
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The Associated. Press today reported, that "The 'Sirhan Area’ 

is ready on San Queenin's Death Row for the killer of Sen. Robert F. 

Kennedy."

Thie story, carried in a Los Angeles daily n.ewspaper (Herald­
Examiner) continued:

"Sirhan if he is treated as other convicted California men 

for whom death i.n the gas chamber i.s decreed, wiil.eventually come 

here (San Quentin) to await his fate.
"Life on Death Row is one of steel bar’s and mesh, clanging 

doors, buzzer signals, locks, guards and gens. It is a place where

the clock and the calendar are the enemies.

"'Sihhm will be granted no special privileges,’ said Assoc­

iate Warden Jim Park: Ils a massive bolt shot back and he shoved against 
a steel mesh door.

"The door opened on a bare ’no-mans lend’ in front of three 

locked and vacant cells, .doubles of each of the cubicles farther down 

which caged the 25 condemned men of the southside tier.

” It was the route the Jordanian Arab would take after checking 

in past the main gate of the squat yeioww forteess 15 miles north of 
San Francisco. •

"Four strddes over the bare pavement, and another meshed door 

blocked the way. Ano-ther bolt shot open, and the door was opened.

"Thi.s was the probable future home, and universe, of the 
slight man who raised a pistol June 5, 1968, in a kitchen area of the 
Ambassador Hotel in Los Angeles.
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"Directly past the door is the Sirhan exercise area — a

10 by 15-foot slab of pavement which i.s the 'front yard' of Ceei 33.

"Locked and vacant cells flank either side of 33. They will 

remain that way. Like other priooners on Death Row Sirhan will have a

televisoon set to watch through the bar's of his cell. Sound is thoough. 
a headset, which can also be plugged into a two-statoon outlet for radio 

at the rear of the ceei.
"The Sirhan cell is Ike Hl the rest — 41 feet wide, 7 feet 

high and 11 feet deep. Appointments are a toilet, wash basin, two steel 

shelves, a tiiy table, a flatsspring cot with a har’d tick matrass and 

a pair of woolen blankets. Light is from a large, bare overhead bulb 
which can be operated in the cell,.

"Like the other Death Row inmates, Sirhan would be let out 
of his cell into his exercise area for 31 hours a day, staring; at 
10:3(0 a.m.

"He’ll be able to talk to the other men, 1 said Park.

"Another thing Sirhan would be able to do outside his cell 

is to see a patch of blue sky through a couple of windows above 

the bars.

"But never*, Park added, will any inmate, even the mainline 

prison trusties who feed Death Row, be permitted to get close to Sirhan. 
He will be fed by a guard.

"The idea, he said, i.s the same as in Los Angeles where Sirhan 
has been held Hnce the shotting — to keep the prisoner segregated 

from men who might want to get into the history books as the killer of
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an important assassin.
”’I’m sure someone would like to kill him, ! said Captain 

Don Weber.

"Since 1938, after hanging was stopped in California, 194 

persons, including four women, have been gassed in the splitsgeoond 

ritual prescribed by law.
"The question of the eonssitutionaltty of the death penalty 

i.s now pending before the U.S. Supreme Couut.n 
* * *

THURSDAY, MAY 22 — Meanwhile at a Los Angeles Cownty Civil 

Service Cammssion hearing, it was stated that Dr. Thomas T. NQguchi, 

county coroner-medical examiner who performed the autopsy on Sen.. Robert 
F. Kennedy, on hearing of the Senaaor's death ilurdei out ’Oh, no.'

Noguchi was fieed foom his post and requested a commission 

hearing.
Mrs. Thelma Graham Clark, a coroner's aide, said she teeephoned 

the irf.orrltioa to Dr. Noguchi and that his response was that "of a 

doctor...one of resignation." 
* * *

FRIDAY, MAY 23 — Sirlan Bishara Sirhan, convicted slayer 
of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy, entered CeU. 33 on Death Row at San Quentin 

early today, after a secret predawn-L flight foom Los Angeles, according 

t° a Los Angeles a.dwseaedr (Hdrlld-EXlmiadr).

He was removed foom his heavilyg^ulardei cdei i.n the Hall of 
Justice at 2 a.m. and fown by a Sherfif’s Department helicopter to
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Van Nuys airport. From there he was taken by a state airpaane to 

San Quentin in a 2i2- hour journey.

- The two-engine plane feew him to the Marin County Airport, 

six miles from San Quentin. A convoy of two state prison cars and 

four Carifornir Highway Patrol vehicles took the 25-year old Jordanian 
immigrant to San Quentin, 10 miless north of San Francisco.

According to the newspaper account;, Sirhan was booked into 
the big prison at 5:31 a.m. and he was alert and very interested in 

the instiurtion and its history, said Associate Warden James Park.

Park said Sirhan was given a normal Death Row breakfast of 

fruit, rolled oats, a cheese omelet, bacon, toast, coffee and Mik.

Captain Don Weber, security chief, related that Sirhan 
"appeared alert and interested and asked a good many questions about 

the iiostiUution during the car trip.11
Park said the other priooners on Death Row "paid no particular 

attentoon to Sirhan.
"They Ike to think they've got a lot of class ^d dont get 

excited about this sort of thing," he added.

Los Angeles County Sheerff Peter J. Pitchess said the transfer 
was a joint one, using his deputies and state offccers. "The early 

morning departure was at the request of abate ruUheoitili," he added.
The newspaper noted:
"Liss than 20 minutes after his arrival, Sirhan was locked 

into his cell, which is on the southside condemned unit,isolated from 

those of other men awwating their dates with, the gas chamber.
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"On each side of Ceei 33, there are locked, empty cells.
An exercise area directly outside measures 10 by 15 feet.

"Prison officials sai.d no other priooners can get closer 

to Sirhan than 15 feel;." 
* * *

SATURDAY, MAY 24 — Sirhan Bishara Sirhan today was ’fitting 
into routine’ at his new home in Cell 33 of Death Row, according to 
San Quentin Warden Louis Nelson. '

A report in a Los Abeles newspaper (Herald-Easminaer) reported: 

"One of the young Arab’s doomed neighbors told a guard 

yesterday ’He’s one of us now. He won’t be bothered.’"
"Warden Nelson, however, is cautious. ’There i.s some under- 

lynnn concern for the fellow, ’ h.e sai.d.. ’Many here would want to be 

known as the assassin of the assassin.
"We have to protect him unil that tmie when the law say's 

we must take his Ifee.”’

JM!.##
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FOR. FURTHER INFORMATION 
Call: Jerry Litmm 
News Secretary 
626-5888, Ext. 82596
RELEASE: Immeedately

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY’S OFFICE PUBLISHES

LAST WEEKLY SUMMARY ON SIEHANI CASE, ANNOUNCES YOUNGER

On June 4, 1969, the 52nd and fimi ' • summary providing 

written information to press, radio ini televisOon on the case of 
Sirhan Bishara S-rten, the convicted slayer of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy, 

was issuei by the Los Angeles County District Attorney's Office.

The idea for the summary came foot Dist. Atty. Ezelle J. 

Younger, whose offcce successfully prosecuted Sirhan. ReaUzing the 

importance of tte case ani the need to keep the public inoomiei, h.e 

assigned his news secretary, Jerry Litmm, a former newspaper editor 
and reporter, t;o devise the format.

Tte first issue, prepared in the form of a press release, 

was dated ter release on June 12, 1968, seven days after the shooting, 

and a summary has teen issued every Weednesday since that tmie.

Jnifomatoon for the summary was obtanned foom newspaper’s;, 

investigators, prosecutors and other sources, and tire compete set of 
52 separate su^^ies totals nearly 500 mimeographed pages (8£ by 11 

inches.)
Summary N° 1 began with the shooting of the senator and 

five other persons on June 5, 1968 and Summary No. 52 described comments 

made by Younger at a press conference on^May 28, 1969.

k^- /D t- "T— 22
SEARCHED  ............ INDEXED .............. ,

SERIALIZED.....^.CcfLED ..^isuZ

■ JUN239J69
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The entire series detailed in chronological order what took 
pla.ce — the shooting, the death of the senator, the indictment by 

the County Grand Jury, the trial delays, the actual trial and the 
sentence.

The summaries have been used in a variety of ways by news­

papers, radio and television statoons in this country and abroad, as 

weei as by the United States Infortatoon Service and Voice of Anteica.

During the year of pUblication, the sumntries were tailed 
to over 300 newspapers, radio and TV statoorss throughout the country 
as a public service.

A survey made by the District Attorney's Office of recipients 

showed that the maority used it for ready reference, while others 
ran the summaies verbatim or used portions of them.

Younger said that the replies foom the survey "certainly 
pr’oved that this was an important endeavor and a unique way for a 

prosecutor to keep the media infomied.11
Some of istie comttnts included these:
” — I think this is one of the greatest ideas I’ve seen 

come from a public offcce i.n many a year" (newspaper editor).

"We are using the summaies only as background. We find 

them valuable i.n that respect" (managing editor, TV station).
"We consider it a valuable public service, and have been 

using your weekly summaies of the Sirhm case in full" (newspaper 

managing editor).
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"They have been most useful and we are keeping them on 

file as they come in" (TV newscaster).

"I think the real value of the summaries will come six 
months or a year or so from now when the things still fresh in memory­

fade’* (newspaper reporter.)

"In a case of this magnitude, such information as these 

summates con-bain are vital for accurate reporting" (radio nation 

newsman).

"I have used the iaaeeial i.n each of these reports to writhe 
updated reports which I voi.ce here (Los Angeles) and send to Wasshngton 

on the phone me for special correspondents reports used ^veral 
times during the day and night in English and translated into 34 Isng- 

uages to rebroadcast across the world" (Voi.ce of America).

"I use the summary for development of news angles on the 
Sirhan story in stories fUed regularly to Washington for publication 
in the Middle East” (U.S. Infomation Agency writer).

Although the sumaa^y rcciailished i.-ts purpose — keeping 

the press, radio and televisoon, and thus the public, interned — 
Dist. Atty. Younger was not successsul in his efforts to modify a 

court order restricting what defense and prosecution attorneys and 

others connected with the case could say to the press.
He sought an annulment of the order from the State Court of 

Appeal, the C£rifiriia Supreme Court and the U.S. Supreme Court, all 
of whom turned down the request.

The ciui•ty pr■oslcr•tir said he had information h.e "leHeves

L
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the public is entitled to know, and which does not interfere with the 
constitutional right of the defendant to a fair trial or disrupt the 
proper administraton of justice."

Much of this information was revealed at the May 28 press 
conference.

However, Younger has said that the world was ennitled to 

information about the case, "and to the best of our abilitees this 
mateeial was made avaalabie."

In the concludnng summary. Younger remarked that he was 

"grateful to the many members of the press corps for their obieecivity 

in reporting «» wrents of thi^ trial and for their uncom/bani-g 

cooperation with the rettrCctOsss imposed by the coaut order."

6-69

##



MEMORANDUM

TO: MEMBERS OF THE PRESS, RADIO AND TV

FROM; JERRY LITTMAN, News Secretary, Los Angeles 
County District Attorney's Office

SUBJECT: FINAL SUMMARY RE: SIRHAN

DATE: JUNE 2, 1969

Since shortly after the assassination of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy 
in Los Angeles on June 5, 1968, the Los Angeles County District 
Attorney's Office has issued a Weekly Sumnary to the press, 
radio and TV.

This is the final Weekly Suanary.

It was our aia i.n furnishing the suanari.es to keep the press; 
radio and TV inooaieed of natters in coimeetion with the case, 
and thus the public. We hope this has been achieved.
Thank you fio your assistance.



NEWS RELEASE FOR FURTHER INFORMATION
Office of the District Attorney Call: Jerry Littman
600 Hall of Justice News Secretary
Los Angeles, Cclifornia 90012 626-3888, Ext. 82396

RELEASE: Wed., June 4, 1969 
After 10 a.m.

WEEKLY SUMMARY #52
Re: Assassination of
Senator Robert F. Kennedy

Note to editors: Because of the widespread interest 
in the assassination of Senator Robert F. Kennedy- in 
Los Angeles on Wednesday, June 5, 1968, and proceeding 
in court, the OOfice of Los Angeles County District 
Attorney Evelle J. Younger is publishing a weekly summary 
of the case. This is the 52nd and final summary.

SUNDAY, MAY 25 — The trial of Sirhan B. Sirhan, the convicted
killer of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy, cost Los Angel.es County taxpayers 
$929,285, according to a story jin a Los Angeles newspaper (Times) today.

Quoting County Autotor-Conitroller Mark H. Bloodgood, the 

newspaper related:

"‘To obtain reimbursement foom the federal government, the 

(Coiunty) Board of Suppevisors has fowarded a resolution by Supprvisor 
Kenneth Hahn to President Nixon and Congress.

"The resolution points out that SB 2080, by Sen. Lee MetcsUf 
(D-Mon.), would reimburse local governments for 'expenses incurred 

in the prosecution of persons charged with the assassinatoon or attempted 
assassination of officers of the United States.1

"Sirhan was the most heavily guarded prisoner in Los Angeles

County history."
* * *

TUESDAY, MAY 27 —"Charges that freed (Los Angeles) County

more —
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Coroner Dr. Thomas T. Noguchi improperly handled the autopsy of Sen. 

Robert F. Kennedy have been dropped to prevent jeopardizing the con- 

victoon of assassin Sirhan Biskra Sirhan according to Comity Counsel 

John Mahhrg," a Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Examiner) has related.

The surprise move came today during the Civil Service Com- 

Mssion hearing into NogucMJs March 18 dismissal by the County Board 

of Supeevisors.
Continued the newspaper:

"Maharg told The Herald-Eaminier, 'The real gist of the case 

is his (NogiuM’ s) ability to admirm-ster the coroner ’s offcce.
"’A trial (Sirhan’s) of international signifccnnce took place 

across the street from Maharg’s offcce) and we don't want to jeo^r- 
dize that trial.*

"Dr. Noguchi was suspended March 4, shortly after he testifeed 
to the Kennedy autopsy results during the Sirhan trial. He was fieed 
two weeks l^er as the result of charges of drug use, cbuse of employees, 

poor cdImlistrction of his offcce and a desire for tragedy that; would 
bring ham personal fame.

■'dirhem was sentenced to death in the gas chamber for the 

Junie 5, 1968 ^scissiration of Kennedy in t;he Ambassador Hotel.

"On Appil 30, after completion of the Sirhan trial and before 
Orhans sentencing, Dr. Noguchi learned he faced an added charge of 
’erratic' behavior during the Kennedy autopsy.

"The speecfic new charge, now dropped, read:
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11 ’During the Kennedy autopsy your (Notch's) eyes were 

glazed, your behavior was erratic and your dictatoon of the events 

surrounding the autopsy was so disassociated that it was all but un­
intelligible.’

"The charges said also that if -two other physicians 'had 

not preserved extensive not.es on the autopsy, it is douUbful that any 

autopsy report of sciennific value could have been produced.

"Dr. (J.E.) Holloway (of Noguchi's office) speccfically 

requested you (Noguchi) to catalguue and arrange in some logical order 
the working papers, photographs, etc. ‘

11 Dr. Holloway even volunteered his services to help you in 
this regard. To date, the working papers have not been catalogued or 

arranged in any logical order. ’
"During the testimony of defense witness Richard H. Kottke, 

Dep. County Counsel Harbin E. Weekes ask:ed that the Aprrl 30 charge 

be dropped.

”The (county connsel's) department wil stipulate this was 

a superior autopsy,' Weekes told comissimers."

Meanwwile, another Los Angeles newspaper (Times), reported 

that during the recess, Godfrey Issac, NogguchL’s at-torney, said Weekes 

told the comm.ssioners at the ben.ch hie (Weekes) feared 'nteeniatooiail 
repercussions' — such as those which foUwwed the autopsy of President 
Kennedy i.n 1963 — would result from arguments over the charge.

Continued the newspapm’s account:

mo:re —
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"Issac said this was a 'ploy' on the part of Weekes to block 

evidence that Noguchi had actually performed the autopsy in a 'mag­

nificent'' manner.

"The lawyer said he would flight to make public at the hearing, 
tlrrough. testimony by witnesses present at the autopsy, what went on 
at the senator's postmortem.

"But (Coimmssion President O. Richard) Capen later said from 

tte bench, Wb don't want to get into the autopsy of Sen. Kennedy, per 
se.1

"Issac — again communing during the recess -- said Noguchi 

perio^ed in an exemplary manner during the autopsy, working for six 
straight hours wtale at the same tmae dictating his findings.” 
. One of the witnesses for Noguchi, Dr. Cyyil Wecht, chief '
forensic: pathologist for Allegheny County (Pittsburgh), testifeed 

today ±hat the Kennedy postmorlim was "the most compete, thorough and 

relec^ally extlnsivl autopsy I have ever seen,« according to the news­

paper.

Continued the newspaper:

"He said he came to Los Angel.es after the autopsy and was 

shown a 'rough draft* of the postmortem report.
'Wecht said he fou'd the ’massive compendim of documents 

... in very good order. "'
* * *

WEDNESDAY, MAY 28 — Los Angeles County Dist. Atty. Evelle 

J. Younger, whose office prosecuted Sirhan B. Sirhan for the death

mon —
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of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy, held a press conference today and issued 

the folOowiig statement:

"mirneeiately folOowng the assassinatoon of Senator Robert F. 

Kennedy on June 5, 1968, this office and ail law enforcement agencies 

in the ioiiitigatOon concluded that public interest and national secu­

rity required an exhaustive inquiry into the cicbmlsanices of the offense 

and the background and associates of the defendant.

Of particular concern was the posssiblity- that the accused 

was a member of a conspiracy whose objectives were not satisfeed by 

the elimination of one pooitical leader. It was agreed that full dis­
closure of the results of the investigatOon should be available to the 

public at a tmie when the ionoSitutional rights of the defendant could 
oo be jeopardized by the attendant pubbicity.

"Under the direction of Chief of Detectives Robeart A. Houghton, 

the Los Angeles Police Department establihhed a special task force con- 

stiuteed of specially quaaified detectives selected foom the various 
divisors of the departement.'

"Special Unit Senator (SUS) was under the immediate super­

vision of Captain Hugh Brown and attained a maximum complement of 47 

investigators assigned to three areas of iniiitigatOon under the command 

of three experienced police liuteenaots.

"No possible avinui of infformation was considered unworthy 

of inrestigatinn by SUS. Wed in ixceii of 4,000 possible winnesses 

and others pretending to some knowledge of events bearing upon the crme 

were inier«reowid, investigated and reOnieivioied by members of the unit.

more —
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"Agents of the FBI.. acting independently, conducted a 

parallel investigatOon which, in additOon to those persons contacted 

by the Los Angeles Police Department, included interviews with hundreds 

of individuals across the nation who were not easily accessible to local 

authooities.

"With the consent of the United States Attorney General, 
there was a mutual exchange of information between the Los Angeles Police 

Department and the F.BI. investigative staffs. A.1 results of the 
investigatonn were made available to the team of deputy district attor­

neys assigned to the preporatOnn and presiotatOon of the case.

"In many instances members of the District Attorney’s Bureau 

of Investigation and certain deputies with spicicliied qualificaionns 

carried out invistigctiie assignments under the eiriitOoo of the pro­

secution team.
"The accumulated results of these i01vestigatiie efforts were 

riviewid and evaluated by the attorneys assigned to the prosecution of 

the case. Wrere it appeared that infformation submitted might be of 

value to either the prosecution or defense of the accused, the prosecu­

tion tejm prepared individual fiees in cntiiipctooo of discovery motions 
by the defendant and for personal review by the Dissrict Attorney in 
regard to the witnesses who should be called to implement the case in 

chief for the prosecution.
»At tlw request of defense counsel., duplicates of more tian 

150 fiees containing interviews of potential winnesses were delivered 

on pretrial discovery motions. Included among these fiees were recorded

more —
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interviews of more than 70 persons who aieeged to have observed the 
defendant at some time during the evening of June 4th and the early 

morning of June 5th at the Ambassador Hotel.

"Sixty-five witnesses were called by the prosecution to ‘
testify during the course of the trial. Their names are Issued in

"Appendix A" which is ataached hereto. At the conclusion of the case

the interviewi with those witnesses who had not been called to testify 
by either party, comppising 199 in all, were fieed with the Supeeior 
Court as E^hbits 84, 85, 86, 87, 88 and 115 to become a matter or 
public record.

"The names of these possible witnesses are issued in 
"Appendix B" attached hereto. The total number of witnesses caLled. 
by b°th parties whose tistmloty proved eirtnnett to the issues of this 

lawsiuLt probably did not exceed 2% of the combined work product of the 
Los Angeles Police Department and the F.BI.

"Among the records now on file are the assertions of a number 

of indivdduals who have attraceed the attention of the news media with 

respect to the eoisiiility of a conspiracy to effect the death of 

Senator Kennedy.

"SUcCurlleertioni have been investigated in depth by the 
responsible law enforcement agencies and will cinttnue to receive' 

rttittion as new speculations arise.

"Illustratiee of the conspiracy suggestions which, have been 

publicized, investigated and discredieed are the fi)liwwng:

"1. The Polka Dot Dress Girl

moire —
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"A Miss Sandra Serrano, ineerveewed by Sandor Vanocur on 

television shootly after the assassinatoon, reported that she had 

heard the gunshots in the pantry of the Ambassador Hotel and that 
shortly thereafter a girl in a polka dot dress passed her on an out­

side fire escape at the southwest end of the Embassy Balrroom shoutwg, 

’We shot him.”
"At the time of the assassination over a thousand people were 

creating a tumult in the area between the pantry and the position on 

the fire escape where Miss Serrano claims to have been resting. Sound 

tests conducted by the Los Angeles Police Department at a tmae when the 

intervening area was deserted prove that the shots could not have been 

audible iso Miss Serrano.

, ’When confronted with the prospect of a polygraph exam.na- 

toon, Miss Serrano admired that the report of the polka dot dress girl 
was pure fabrication on her part.

’’Prior to her television intereveew, Miss Serrano had re­
counted her ficionnal observations to Vincent DiPierro who was present 
in the pantry at the time of the shooting. Mr. DiPierro incorporated
this information into his account of an attractiee girl in a polka dot 
dress who aieegedly exchanged an inaudible word with the defendant just 

before he stepped from the tray rack in the pan-try to shoot the Senator.
”On interoogatoon by offccers of the Los Angeles Police 

Department, DiPierro admited that he had tpibllihedd his itatiptnt at 
the suggestion of Sandra Serrano with whom he conversed at Rampeart Sta­
tion folOewnng her ttltrision interveww.

more —
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"At the trial, the prosecution produced a witness, Miss 

Valerie Schulte, whose position in the pantry at the time of the shoot­
ing was in the direct line of vision-.. between DiPierro and Sirhan and 

at least 10 feet distant from either. Miss Schulte was on crutches, 
and alhhough clad in a black and yeioow polka dot dress, has been 

commpetely absolved foom any comilicity in the assassinatoon.
"One Booker Griffin reported seeing a girl i.n a polka dot - 

dress feeeing the pantry area immediately after the shooting and further 
asserted that the same girl had been observed by him in the company of 
the defendant prior to the assassination.

"When interoogated by investigators, Mr. Grrffin stated that 

the girl feeeing the pan-try wore a dress of more than one color — not 
necesssaily polka dots — and admitted that she might well not have 

been tie same girl whom f saw n-alier in the evening. The lady, if 
she existed, cannot be connected with Sirhan Sirhatn.

"2. Jose Duarte

"Mr. Duarte aUgged that Sirhan attended a meeting of the 

Peace and Freedom Party on May 21, 1968. Duarte, an anti-Castro Cuban 

exile, asserted that as he addressed the pro-Castro audience, Sirhan 
engaged him in. heated argument.

"It is estimated that between 40 and 45 persons attended the 
meeting. Of those in attendance, 37 have been identified and inter- 
vlewed. Besi^ Duarte Mmsf only four of Uesse individuals, who are 

k™™ to be henchmen of Duate's, identify Str-han as the ler•^>rn in 
question.
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"On Wilshire Boulevard Owen stopped at a hotel, later 

identified as the Ambassador, to permit Sirhan to visit a friend. 
who was employed there. Owen aUegedly dropped Sirhan off in the 
Heilwood area at about 6 p.m., having made an appointment to meet 

him at 11 p.m. the same evening to conclude the palomi.no purchase 

transaction.
’'Sirhan either appeared or faieed to appear, according to 

the state of Mr. Owens memory.

"Mr. Owen recounted the events of his aieeged contact with 
Sirhan Sirhan in three separate interveews with Los Angeles Police 

Department officers. Each version of the encounter was inconsistent ‘ 

in significant detail with the other versions.
"The last interview occurred on July 3, 1968, in San Fran­

cisco at the offcce of George T. Davis, whom Mr. Owen had retained 
as an attorney. Following this interveew, Mr. Owen subimtted to a 

polygraph examination conducted at the San Francisco Police Depart­
ment.

"The results of the examination conclusively established, 
in the opinion of the examiner, that Owen was untruthful in identifyng 
Sirhan as the hitchhiker to whom he had given a lift on June 3, 1968.

"Investigatnng offccers contacted the proprietors and employees 

of several business establis:mlenti which Owen had allegedly visited 

just prior to, or during, the events in question. These inte:viiewi 

either faieed to corroborate, or contradictdd Owens staeements.

more —
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"A boxer under contract to Owen stated that Owen had picked, 

him up at the Colieemn Hotel at 6:30 pm. on the evening of June 3, 

1968 to attend a social function and returned him to the hotel at 

11:30 p.m. This information did not appear in any of Mr. Owen^ 

several accounts and contradicts the allegation of an 11:00 p.m. appoint­

ment with Sirhan.
"Mary Sirhan, the mother of the defendant, recalled that 

her son was at home, watching television at 4:30 p.m. on the arfter- 

noon of June 3, 1968. To the best of her knowledge, Sirhan remained 

at home the entire evening. •
"Altouugh Mr. Owen professes to be a preacher of the gospel, 

there are a number of instances of his past conduct on the police 
blotters of several states that indicate a less than saintly reluctnnce 

to grasp certain opportunities which have been ^forded him.

"The investigators have concluded that Mr. Owen coveted 

a bizarre tale in the expectation of some advantage from the attends 

ouebieity.

"4. James W. Muiddll

"Inexplicably, some soeceeLt-t±oll has ^isen regarding the 
pr^ence of James W. Mundi!/ a laicized priest;, at the Ambassador 

Hotel on the night of the primary election.

"Mr. Miunall had been a classmate of Senator Kennedy’s 

brittlr-in-taw and through his associaton had bun closely acquainted 

with Ethel Kennedy over a period of years. He attended tin Senater's 
party in his 5th floor suite at the Amlb<tiiador Hotel, preceded the 
Senator te the Embassy Ballriom, and was net present in the pantry

more —
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at the time of the shooting.
"Mr. Mmddll joined Mrs. Kennedy at the side of her husband 

after the shooting and followed the Senator to the Central Receiving 
Hoopi-tal by taxicab. For a brief period he was present i.n the aner- 
gency room where Senator Kennedy received initial treatment.

"When Mrs. Kennedy emerged foot the emergency treataat room 

itmildately prior to the trsrnsfer of the Senate to the Good San^itan 
Hoosital, she handed Mr. Mundi! a bundle containing the- Senator's 
cloihnng. Mr. Mundi! delivered the bundle -to Sgt. SOihart of the 
Los Angeles Police Department. '

"Mr. Muiddll was still a resident of Los Angelds whdn he 

was intevi•eo•wed by the F.B.I. on Septdmb^r 30, 1968. He has since 
moved to the State of Wasshngton. Tho^ is no evidlncl whatsoerer 

that his presence at tlie seene of the assassination has sinister 

implications.

"5. SaieslSah Sirhan
"Saidallah Sirtan, one of Sirhan B. Sirhan’s older brothers, 

reported to the Pasadena Police Department in the ealy morning hours 

of July 3, 1968, that he had been fieed upon by the occupant of a 

Vollsswagon bus wJh.le northbound on the Pasadena Freeway within the 
city limits of the .City of PsSselns. ,

"Examnation of the vehicle driven by SaidslS^i discoseed 
two bu.let hH.es iLn the right wind-wing. The bullets were recovered 

and ballistcss examination revealed that they were fieed from the 
same .38 revolver, 

more —
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"Painstaking inquiry into the ciccimistances of this incident 

by the Pasadena Police Department faieed to yield any clue as to the 
identity of the perpetrator. There is no evidence to suggest that 
the offense is in any way connected with the assassination of June 4, 
1968.

"At this date, no credible evidence has been presented to 
any' .law enforcement agency concerned with the assassination of Senator 

Robert F. Kennedy which lends credence to the suppoostion that any 
person other than Sirhan B. Sirhan bears any criminal respoonsbiiity 
for that tragic event.

"My purpose in causing the work product obtained in the 
preparatoon of this case to become a matter of public record is to 
facilitate full discoosure as to ail questions which may be the subject 
of legitimate public concern.

"To ensure the prrsrrvttinn of the adhibits received in 

evidence or marked for identifCcation at ths trial, pending the 
determination of the case on appeal., the Los Angeles County Clerk 

will prepare duplicate copies of documentary evidence and photographic 
representatonns of ejdhbits which will be available for inspection 

by interested members of the public at the Office of the County Clerk, 

Criminal. Division, on the fourth floor of the Hall of Justice
"Inspection of the original exhibits will be permitted by 

order of the Superior Couut, for good cause show.

"Duplicate copies of the odiibits on file may be obtained
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